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RoprINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Appomattox
Appomattox, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Appomattox,
Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County of
Appomattox, Virginia’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns,
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Appomattox, Virginia, as of June 30, 2009, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 15, the County implemented GASB Statement No.45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Emplovers for Post-Employment Benefits other than Pensions effective July 1, 2008.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23, 2009, on
our consideration of the County of Appomattox, Virginia's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit.




The Management's Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the Schedules of Pension
Funding Progress and Funding Progress for Retiree Health Insurance Plan as listed in the table of contents, are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual fund financial statements, the budgetary comparison schedules, and other statistical information
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the County of
Appomattox, Virginia. The Other Supplementary Information including the combining and individual fund
financial statements, the budgetary comparison schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory section and other statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Eﬁ[ﬂvvv\, M’[O\C &44&’(4.‘&&

Richmond, Virginia
December 23, 2009




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
To the Citizens of Appomattox County
County of Appomattox, Virginia

As management of the County of Appomattox, Virginia we offer readers of the County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscai
year ended June 30, 2009. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and with the County’s basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

Government-wide Financial Statements

» The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$8,346,139 (net assets).

Fund Financial Statements

The Governmental Funds, on a current financial resource basis, reported expenditures and other
financing uses in excess of revenues and other financing sources of $1,156,325 (Exhibit 5) after
making contributions totaling $4,199,148 to the School Board.

> As of the close of the current fiscal year; the County's funds reported ending fund balances of
$12,206,801, an increase of $1,156,325 in comparison with the prior year.

» Al the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the general fund
was $2,882,489, or 14% of total general fund expenditures and other uses.

» The combined long-term obligations increased by $2,581,098 during the current fiscal year.




Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial
statements. The County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements,
2. Fund financial statements, and
3. Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements - The Government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reporied in the statement for some items that will only result in cash fiows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general
government, courts, police protection, sanitation, social services, education, cultural events, and
recreation.

The Government-wide financial statements include not only the County of Appomattox, Virginia itself
(known as the primary government), but also a legally separate school district and industrial
development authority for which the County of Appomattox, Virginia is financially accountable.
Financial information for the component units are reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County of
Appomattox, Virginia, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into
two categories: governmental funds and fiduciary funds.




Overview of the Financial Statements {Coniinued)

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions or
services reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Whereas
the government-wide financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, the
governmental fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The focus of modified accrual reporting is on near-term inflows and outfiows of financial resources
and the balance of financial resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Since the governmental
funds focus is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements a reconciliation
between the two methods is provided at the bottom of the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The County
has two major governmental funds — the General Fund and the County Capital Projects Fund.

Fiduciary funds - The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the County's agency funds. It is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
All of the County's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets. The
County excludes these activities from the County's government-wide financial statements because the
County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. Agency funds are County custodial funds
used to provide accountability of client monies for which the County is custodian.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information for budgetary comparison schedules and
presentation of combining financial statements for the discretely presented component unit - School
Board and the component unit — Economic Development Authority. Neither the School Board nor the
Economic Development Authority issues separate financial statements.




Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a County's financial position.
in the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $8,346,139 at the close of the most recent

fiscal year. The following table summarizes the County's Statement of Net Assets:

County of Appomattox, Virginia's Net Assets

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
outstanding

Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Activities

2009 2008
13,759,180 12,120,132
20,591,418 21,154,513
34,350,598 33,274,645

781,958 781,245
25,222,501 22,271,403
26,004,459 23,052,648

3,224,044 1,190,814

5,122,095 9,031,183

8,346,139 10,221,997




Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

The County's net assets decreased by $1,875,858 during the current fiscal year. The following table
summarizes the County's Statement of Activities

County of Appomattox, Virginia's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2009 2008

Charges for services $ 351,290 $ 448,455
Operating grants and

contributions 5,162,798 4,330,058
General property taxes 8,900,236 8,329,989
Other local taxes 2,146,757 2,241,637
Grants and other contri-

butions not restricted 1,096,610 1,153,964
Other general revenues 428,233 656,942

Total revenues $ 18,085,924 § 17,161,045

General government

administration 5 1,475,556 § 1,717,318
Judicial administration 1,138,050 1,059,914
Public safety 3,796,542 3,568,696
Public works 3,482,208 1,854,655
Health and welfare 2,967,988 2,790,885
Education 4,986,375 4,778,638
Parks, recreation, and
cuitural 408,633 377,658
Community development 761,056 285,603
Interest and other fiscal
charges 945,374 862,965

Total expenses 5 19,961,782 § 17,296,332

Change in net assets S (1,875,858) $ (135,287)
Net assets, beginning of year 10,221,997 10,357,284
Net assets, end of year S 8,346,139 § 10,221,997




Financial Analysis of the County’'s Funds

As noted earlier, the County used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of available resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported fund balances of
$12,206,901, an increase of $1,156,325 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 40% of this
total amount constitutes unreserved General Fund balance, which is available for spending at the
County’s discretion.

The County Capital Projects Fund accounts for all major general public improvements. At the end of
the fiscal year, the fund balance was $8,925,294, all of which was designated for current or future
capital projects.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were increases of $1,205,609
and can bhe briefly summarized as follows:

678,097 increase in health and welfare expenditures

179,426 increase in public safety expenditures

131,104 increase in public works expenditures

171,192 increase in debt service expenditures

148,612 increase in judicial administration expenditures

160,287 decrease in capital projects expenditures
57,465 increase in various expenditures

Yy v VY v v v v
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The increase in budgeted General Fund expenditures resulted in an increase in the budgeted
beginning General Fund balance. During the year, revenues and other sources exceeded budgetary
estimates by $794,465. Budgetary estimates exceeded expenditures and other uses by $1,777,075
resulting in a positive variance of $2,571,540.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets - The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental operations as of
June 30, 2009 amounts to $20,591,418 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and system, and machinery and equipment.

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in the notes of this report.

Long-term debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total debt outstanding of
$22,539,136. Of this amount, $7,985,636 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
County. The remainder of the County's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue
sources (i.e., lease/revenue bonds).

The County's total debt increased by $2,112,770 during the current fiscal year.

Additional information on the County of Appomattox, Virginia's long-term debt can be found in the
notes of this report.




Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

» The unemployment rate for the County of 7.8 percent compared to the state’s average
unemployment rate of 7.3 percent.

» Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
Ali of these factors were considered in preparing the County’s budget for the 2010 fiscal year.

The fiscal year 2010 budget increased 2.68%, and all tax rates remained the same except the real
estate rate, which increased from $0.44 to $0.48.

Reqguests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County of Appomattox, Virginia's
finances for all those with an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the County Administrator, P.O. Box 863, Appomattox, Virginia 24522,
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Exhibit 1

Primary
Government
Governmental Component Units
Activities School Board EDA
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,593,749 3,666,625 §$ 75,085
Cash in custody of others - 4,000 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes receivable 1,328,666 - -
Accounts receivable 87,225 33,834 -
Pue from other governmental units 1,387,446 602,354 -
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents (in custody of others) 5,171,762 - -
Cther assets:
Unamortized bond issue costs 190,332 - -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 1,038,296 211,370 1,386,773
Buildings and improvements 17,184,318 8,551,681 -
Equipment 1,683,791 933,564 -
Infrastructure 19,628 - 1,514,128
Construction in progress 665,385 - -
Total assets $ 34,350,598 13,093,428 % 2,975,986
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 419,868 58,795 § -
Accrued liabilities - 1,777,418 -
Accrued interest payable 243,129 - -
Due to other governmental units - 577,630 -
Unearned revenue 118,961 - -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 834,279 19,703 -
Due in more than one year 24,388,222 557,270 -
Total liabilities $ 26,004,459 2,990,816 § -
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 3,224,044 9,696,615 § 2,800,901
Unrestricted {deficit) 5,122,095 1,305,997 75,085
Total net assets $ 8,346,139 11,002,612 § 2,975,986
Total liabilities and net assets $ 34,350,588 13,093,428 $ 2,975,986

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Actlvities
For the Year Ended June 39, 2009

Exhibit 2

Functions/Programs

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental activities:
Ganeral government administration
Judicial administration

Public safety
Public works

Health and welfare

Education

Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Total primary government

COMPONENT UNITS:

School Board

Economic Development Authority
Total component units

Net {Expense} Revenue and

Program Revenues

Changes in Net Assets

Primary
Operating Capital Government Component Units
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Searvices Contributions Contributions Activitigs Schoot Board EDA

$ 1475556 § - 8 324,788 § - $ (1.150,768) & - % -
1,138,05¢ 23,931 498,257 - (617.862) -
3,796,542 176,090 1,584,560 - (2,035,892) -
3,482,208 112,306 - - (3.369,903) -
2,967,988 - 2,279,657 - (688,331) - -
4,986,375 - - - (4,986,375) - -
408,633 38,862 45,135 - (324,536) - -
761,056 2 432,401 - (328,6563) - -
945,374 - - - {945,374) - -

$ 19,961,782 $ 351,200 $§ 5162,798 & - $ (14,447,694) § - $ -
$ 19,961,782 § 351,290 $ 5,162,798 $ - $ {14,447,894) § - § -
$ 21,609,994 § 492,753 $ 16,940,735 % - $ - % (4,266,508) $ -
47,356 13,447 - - - - {33,908)

§ 21,747,350 3 506,200 § 16,940,735 § - $ - % {4,266,508) $  (33,909)

General revenues:

General property taxes $ 8,900,236 $ - § -
L.ocal sates and use taxes 807,068 - -
Consumaer ulility taxes 335,914 - -
Communication taxes 587,391 - -
Other local taxes 416,384 - -
Unrestricted revenues from use of money and property 145,117 16,438 455
Miscellaneous 228,763 203,627 -
Grants and conftributions not restricted to specific programs 1,096,610 - -
Payment from Appomattox County School Board 53,353 - -
Payment from Appomattox County - 4,653,165 -
Total general revenues $ 12571836 $ 4,873,230 § 455
Change in net assels $ (1,875,858) & 606,724 § (33,454)
Net asssts - beginning 10,221,997 10,395,888 3,009,440
Net assets - ending $ 8346139 § 11,002,612 § 2,975,986

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Balance Sheet

June 30, 2009

County of Appomattox, Virginia

Governmental Funds

Exhibit 3

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other governmental units
Resfricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liahilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund halances:
Unreserved, designated for:

Law library
Balipark
Capital improvements
Courthouse maintenance
Cost of jail keep
Wireless grant

Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

General fund

Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

County County
Capital Special Revenue
General Projects Fund Total
1,442,490 § 3,763,632 397,727 § 5,593,749
1,328,666 - - 1,328,666
86,999 - 226 87,225
1,380,701 - 6,745 1,387,446
- 5,171,762 - 5,171,762
4238856 $ 8,925,294 404,698 $ 13,568,848
414,288 § - $ 5580 % 419,868
942,079 - - 942,079
1,356,367 § - $ 5580 $ 1,361,047
- $ - 26,282 % 26,282
34 - - 34
- 3,249,755 - 3,249,755
7,086 - - 7,086
- - 30,801 30,901
- - 83,026 83,026
2,875,369 - - 2,875,369
- - 258,909 258,909
- 5,675,639 - 5,675,639
$ 2882489 § 8,925,294 398,118 § 12,206,901
$ 4238856 B 8,925,294 404698 § 13,568,848

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.

12




Exhibit 4
County of Appomattox, Virginia
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Netf Assets
June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Total fund balances per Exhibit 3 - Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 3 12,206,801

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds,

Capital assets, cost $ 30,529,534
Less: Accumulated depreciation (9,938,116) 20,591,418

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 823,118

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and interest payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Bonds and notes payable $ (22,539,136)

Compensated absences (388,544)

OPEB liability (23,000)

Unamortized hond issuance costs 190,332

Landfill accrued closure/post-closure costs (2,271,821)

Interest payable (243,129) (25,275,298)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 8,346,139

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 5

REVENUES
General property taxes
Other local taxes
Permits, privilege fees,
and regulatory licenses
Fines and forfeitures
Revenue from the use of
money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Recovered costs
Intergovernmental revenues:
Appomattox School Board
Commonwealth
Federal
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
interest and other fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Debt issuance

Issuance of refunding bonds
Redemption of refunding bonds

Total other financing sources (uses) $

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

County County
Capital Special Revenue

General Projects Fund Total
$ 8,739,210 § - 8 - § 8,739,210
2,146,757 - - 2,146,757
159,932 - . 159,932
19,785 - - 19,785
115,715 28,093 1,309 145,117
168,082 - 3,491 171,573
219,427 - 10,336 229,763
78,034 - - 78,034
53,353 - - 53,353
5,412,926 - 53,109 5,466,035
793,373 - - 793,373
$17,006,594 $ 28,093 $ 68,245 § 18,002,932
$ 1,384,164 $ - % - $ 1,384,164
991,963 - - 991,963
3,555,375 - 1,751 3,557,126
1,368,486 - - 1,368,486
2,973,560 - - 2,973,560
4,199,524 - - 4,199,524
380,600 - - 380,600
720,109 - - 720,109
1,782,520 334,967 - 2,117,487
1,591,988 - - 1,691,988
863,533 402,825 - 1,266,358
$19,811,822 § 737,792 § 1,751 $ 20,551,365
$ (1,905,228) $ (709,699) $ 66,494 § (2,548,433)
$ 1,101679 § 756,065 § - § 1,858,644
{756,965) {1,079,317) (22,362)  (1,858,644)
- 3,344,600 - 3,344,600
- 11,208,900 - 11,208,800
- (10,848,742) - (10,848,742)
344,714 § 3,382,408 (22,362) $§ 3,704,758
$ (1,560,514) $ 2,672,707 § 44132 $ 1,156,325
4,443,003 6,252,587 354,086 11,050,576
$ 2882489 $ 8025284 3 399,118 $ 12,206,901

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2069

Exhibit 6

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activitles the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which the capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.

Capital asset additions
Depreciation expense

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of fong-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repaymaent of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments
Issuance of long-term debt
(Increase) decrease in landfill closure liability

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

(Increase) decrease in compensated absences
(Increase} decrease in OPEB liability

(Increase) decrease in Unamortized bond issuace cosls
Decrease in accrued interest

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statemen,
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1,156,325
$ 443,754
(1,006,849) (563,095)
161,026
$ 12,440,730
{14,553,500)
(813,472) (2,926,242)
$  (1,856)
(23,000)
190,332
130,652 296,128
(1,875,858)




Exhibit 7
County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,185
LIABILITIES
Amounts held for social services clients $ 12,307
Amounts held for others 6,531
Amounts held for inmates 347
Total liabilities $ 19,185

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Nates to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The County of Appomattox, Virginia (the "County”) is governed by an elected five member Board of Supervisors.
The County provides a full range of services for its citizens. These services include police and fire protection,
sanitation service, recreational activities, cultural events, education, and social services.

The financial statements of the County of Appomattox, Virginia have been prepared in conformity with the
specifications promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as specified by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are described below.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - GASB Statement No. 34 requires the financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in the
form of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A).

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements - The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using full
accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities. This approach includes not just current assets and
liabilities but also capital assets and long-term liabilities (such as buildings and general obligation debt).

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

Statement of Net Assets - The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display financial position of the primary
government (government and business-type activities) and its discretely presented component units.
Governments will report all capital assets in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and will report
depreciation expense - the cost of “using up” capital assets - in the Statement of Activities. The net assets of a
government will be broken down into three categories - 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2)
restricted; and 3) unrestricted.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Statement of Activities - The government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and revenues in a format
that focuses on the cost of each of the government’s functions. The expense of individual functions is compared
to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental
grants}.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particutar function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an important
component of a government’s accountability to the public. Many citizens participate in ohe way or another in
the process of establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments, and have a keen
interest in following the actual financial progress of their governments over the course of the year. Many
government’s revise their original budgets over the course of the year for a variety of reasons. Under the
reporting model, governments provide budgetary comparison information in their annual reports, including a
requirement to report the government’s original budget with the comparison of final budget and actual results.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission,
public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a primary governmental unit’s
reporting entity for the basic financial statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability
includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and the ability of the
primary government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden
relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary government should be
included in its reporting entity. These financial statements present the County of Appomattox (the primary
government) and its component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the
primary government, Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate
column in the combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the government.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures

Blended Component Unit. The County has no blended component units at June 30, 2009.

Discretely Presented Component Units. The School Board members are elected by the citizens of
Appomattox County. The School Board is responsible for the operations of the County's School System within
the County boundaries. The School Board is fiscally dependent on the County. The County has the ability to
approve its budget and any amendments. The primary funding is from the General Fund of the County. The
School Fund does not issue a separate financial report. The financial statements of the School Board are
presented as a discrete presentation of the County financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

The Economic Development Authority of Appomattox County is responsible for industrial and commercial
development in the County. The Authority consists of members that are appointed by the Board of
Supervisors. The Authority is fiscally dependent on the County, and therefore, it is included in the County’s
financial statements as a discrete presentation for the year ended June 30, 2009. The Economic
Development Authority does not issue a separate financial report.

Other Related Organizations Included in the County's Financial Report

None

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The principles prescribed by GASB represent generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to governmental units.

The County applies all GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless these pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met,

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category
(public safety, public works, health and welfare, etc.) which are otherwise being supported by general
government revenues, (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and
charges, etc.) The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related
program revenues, operating and capital grants, and contributions. The program revenues must be directly
associated with the function (public safety, public works, health and welfare, etc.) or a business-type
activity.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 {Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are normally
budgeted. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and ctaims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

The County’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type. Since by definition
these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or
obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when billed, net of
allowances for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes not collected within 60 days after year-end are
reflected as deferred revenues. Sales and utility taxes, which are collected by the state or utilities and
subsequently remitted to the County, are recognized as revenues and receivables upon collection by the
state or utility, which is generally within two months preceding receipt by the County.

Licenses, permits, fines and rents are recorded as revenues when received. Intergovernmental revenues,
consisting primarily of federal, state and other grants for the purpose of funding specific expenditures, are
recognized when earned or at the time of the specific expenditure. Revenues from general purpose grants
are recognized in the period to which the grant applies. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the County are organized on the basis
of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting
entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources together with all
related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions, or limitations.

20




COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued}

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

1.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The
County reports the General Fund as a major governmental fund.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. This fund is used to account for all
financial transactions and resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Revenues are derived primarily from property and other local taxes, state and federal distributions,
licenses, permits, charges for service, and interest income. A significant part of the General Fund’s
revenues is used principally to finance the operations of the Component Unit School Board. The General
Fund is considered a major fund for government-wide reporting purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The County Capital Projects Fund is reported as a
major fund.

The County reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory
provisions or administrative action,

Fiduciary Funds - (Trust and Agency Funds) - account for assets held by the County unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent or custodian for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or
other funds. These funds include Agency Funds. These funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting
described in the Governmental Fund Presentation. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-
wide financial statements.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the government.

State statutes authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds and repurchase agreements.

F. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value which approximates market; no investments are valued at cost.
Certificates of deposit and short-term repurchase agreements are reported in the accompanying financial
statements as cash and cash equivalents.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1-—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

G. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portions of the interfund
loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “advances to/from other funds.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The County
calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data and, in certain cases,
specific account analysis. The allowance amounted to approximately $153,216 at June 30, 2009 and is
comprised solely of property taxes.

Real and Personal Property Tax Data:

The tax calendars for real and personal property taxes are summarized below.

Real Property Personal Property
Levy January 1 January 1
Due Date June 5/December 5 December 5
Lien Date January 1 January 1

The County bills and collects its own property taxes.

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally

22




COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

H.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as land,
buildings, and equipment with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. The County does not have any infrastructure in its capital assets
since roads, streets, bridges and similar assets within its boundaries are the property of the Commonwealth
of Virginia. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded as estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Assets Years
Building improvements 40
Furniture, Vehicles, and Office Equipment 5-20
Buses 10

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmentat fund that will pay it.
Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported as an expense in the Statement of Activities and a long-term
obligation in the Statement of Net Assets. In accordance with the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating
rights to received sick pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulating sick
leave benefits that is estimated will be taken as “terminal leave” prior to retirement.

Retirement Plan

Retirement plan contributions are actuarially determined and consist of current service costs and
amortization of prior service cost over a 30-year period. The County’s policy is to fund pension cost as it
accrues.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

L. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

. Net Assets

Net assets are the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets represent
capital assets, less accumulated depreciation less any outstanding debt related to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

tn the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued and premiums on issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Note 2—Stewardship, Compliance, and Accounting:

The following procedures are used by the County in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1.

On or before March 30", the County Administrator submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed operating
and capital budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating and capital budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.
Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution.

The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the department or category level.
The appropriation for each department or category can be revised only by the Board of Supervisors. The
County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within general government departments;
however, the School Board is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within the school system’s categories.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principies (GAAP).
Appropriations lapse on June 30, for all County units.

Expenditures and Appropriations

Expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any fund at June 30, 2009.

24




COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

NOTE 3—Deposits and Investments:

Deposits

All cash of the primary government and its discretely presented component units is maintained in accounts
collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the
Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository insurance.

Investments

Statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the
Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank,
“nrime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate notes, banker’s acceptances, repurchase agreements
and the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The County’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2009 were rated by Standard and Poor’s and the ratings are
presented below using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale. The County will minimize credit risk by limiting
investments to the safest type of securities.

Fair Quality Ratings

AAAM
Local Government Investment Pool S 2,500,000
State Non-Arbitrage Pool 77,009
Total S 2,577,009

interest Rate Risk

The County will minimize the risk that the market value of securities in that portfolio will fall due to changes in
general interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to
maturity.

External Investment Pools

The State Non-Arbitrage Pool (SNAP) is an open-end management investment company registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The fair value of the positions in the SNAP and Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) is the same as the value of the pool shares. As the LGIP is not SEC registered, regulatory
oversight of the pool rests with the Virginia State Treasury. LGIP maintains a policy to operate in a manner
consistent with SEC Rule 2a-7.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 4—Due to/from Other Governments:

At June 30, 2009, the County has receivables from other governments as follows:

Component
Primary Unit
Government School Board
Other Local Governments:
Appomattox County School Board S 577,630 $
Commenwealth of Virginia:
Local sales tax 139,597 -
Welfare 41,681 -
Rolling stock tax 38,801 -
Auto rental tax 285 -
Comprehensive services 109,141 -
State Sales Tax - 299,590
Wireless grant 6,745 -
Constitutional officer reimbursements 160,989 -
Recordation tax 9,419 -
Mobile home titling tax 12,306 -
ABC profits -
Department of Forestry 23,490
Tobacce grant 87,707
Region 2000 reimbursement 26,993 -
Communications tax 85,253 -
Virginia domestic violence victim funds 10,000 -
Federal Government:
School fund grants - 302,764
Welfare 57,409 -
Total due from other governments S 1,387,446 S 602,354
At June 30, 2009, amounts due to other local governments are as follows:
Other Local Governments:
County of Appomattox $ - 577,630
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 5—Capital Assets:

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:
Primary Government;

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
Land S 1,038,296 $ -5 - $ 1,038,296
Construction in progress 325,150 615,755 275,520 665,385
Total capital assets not subject to depreciation $ 1,363,446 $ 615,755 § 275,520 § 1,703,681
Capitat assets subject to depreciation;
Buildings S 11,501,773 S 534,470 § -5 12,036,243
Equipment 4,495,089 121,003 94,090 4,522,002
Infrastructure - 21,809 - 21,809
Jointly owned assets 12,819,562 96,979 670,742 12,245,799
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 28,816,424 S 774,261 5 764,832 § 28,825,853
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Buildings S 2,434,984 § 402,576 5 - S 2,837,560
Eguipment 2,467,281 465,020 94,090 2,838,211
Infrastructure - 2,181 - 2,181
Jointly owned assets 4,123,092 353,797 216,725 4,260,164
Total accumutated depreciation 5 9,025,357 § 1,223,574 S 310,815 § 9,938,116
Total capital assets being depreciated, net S 19,791,067 § (449,313} § 454,017 § 18,887,737

Governmental capital assets, net S 21,154,513 S 166,442 S 729,537 & 20,591,418

Component Unit - School Board:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
Land ) 211,370 §$ -5 -5 211,370
Total capital assets not subject to depreciation ) 211,370 % -5 - $ 211,370
Capital assets subject to depreciation:
Equipment $ 3,102,690 § 202,564 $ 88,761 S 3,216,493
Jointly owned assets 12,443,076 - (670,742) 13,113,818
Total capital assets being depreciated S 15,545,766 § 202,564 5 (581,981) $ 16,330,311
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment 5 2,159,393 § 212,297 § 88,761 § 2,282,929
Jointly owned assets 4,002,004 343,408 (216,725) 4,562,137
Total accumulated depreciation 5 6,161,397 $ 555,705 $ (127,964) 3 6,845,066
Total capital assets being depreciated, net S 9,384,369 S {353,141) § (454,017) § 9,485,245

Governmental capital assets, net S 9,595,739 $ (353,141) § {454,017) 5 9,696,615
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 5—Capital Assets: (Continued)

Component Unit - economic Development Authority:

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:

Business-Type activities:
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
Land 5

Total capital assets not subject to depreciation $

Capital assets subject to depreciation:

Infrastructure S
Total capital assets being depreciated S

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure §
Total accumulated depreciation §

Total capital assets being depreciated, net S

Business-Type capital assets, net )

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs/funds as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government administration

Judicial administration

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Education

Parks, recreation and cultural
Community development

Total Governmental activities

Component Unit School Board

Component Unit Economic Development Authority

Balance Ralance

July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
1,386,773 § - 8 S 1,386,773
1,386,773 § - 5 $ 1,386,773
1,861,204 $ - S - $ 1,861,204
1,861,204 § -5 4 1,861,204
300,546 % 46,530 $ S 347,076
300,546 ¢ 46,530 ¢ - & 347,076
1,560,658 $ (46,530) $ S 1,514,128
2,947,431 § {46,530} s 2,900,901

S 77,258

146,087

394,775

149,213

11,049

353,797

50,448

40,947

s 1,223,574

S 555,705

$ 46,530
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 6—Interfund Transfers:

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009, consisted of the following:

Fund

Primary Government:
General Fund

County Special Revenue Fund
County Capital Projects Fund

Total

Transfers In

Transfers Out

$ 1,101,679 $ 756,965
- 22,362

756,965 1,079,317

$ 1,858,644 $ 1,858,644

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2} use unrestricted revenues collected in the General
Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgeting authorization.

Note 7—Long-Term Obligations:

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2009:

Amounts Amounts
Payable Payable at Amounts
at July 1, June 30, Due Within
2008 Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Governmental Obligations:
Incurred by County:
Compensated absences
payable S 386,688 40,525 $ 38,669 388,544 38,854
Lease revenue bonds 11,260,568 14,553,500 11,260,568 14,553,500 -
OPEB liability - 37,000 14,000 23,000 -
Landfill postclosure care 1,458,349 813,472 - 2,271,821 75,727
Total incurred by County S 13,105,605 15,444,497 $ 11,313,237 17,236,865 114,581
Incurred by School Board:
General obligation bonds $ 8,696,470 ) 710,834 7,985,636 719,698
Capital Leases 469,328 469,328 - -
Totat incurred by School Board S 9,165,798 - S 1,180,162 7,985,636 719,698
Total General Obligations,
Primary Government 5 22,271,403 ¢ 15,444,497 ¢ 12,493,399 ¢ 25,222,501 834,279

The County issued 2009A lease revenue refunding bond in the amount of $11,208,900 to be used to refund a 2001
Capital Lease, Series 2003A and 2003B lease Revenue Notes, Series 2005 Lease Revenue Bond and Series 2006
Lease Revenue Bond. The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunded debt and the refunding
debt was (53,308,186). The economic loss on the transaction was (5692,217).
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 7—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)

Primary Government:

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows:

County Obligations

Year Lease Revenue
Ending Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest

2010 S - $ 527,510
2011 - 701,596
2012 103,400 701,596
2013 633,600 696,644
2014 688,400 666,084
2015 789,300 632,880
2016 843,900 594,804
2017 901,300 554,094
2018 1,209,300 510,614
2019 1,280,000 452,258
2020 1,349,300 390,492
2021 1,426,200 325,380
2022 1,506,800 256,558
2023 2,103,700 183,846
2024 181,300 82,306
2025 190,000 73,622
2026 199,100 64,522
2027 208,700 54,984
2028 458,600 44,988
2029 480,600 23,021

Total $ 14,553,500 § 7,537,799
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 7—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)

Primary Government: (continued)

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows:

School Obligations

Year General Obligation
Ending Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest

2010 S 719,698 § 381,614
2011 733,767 343,545
2012 663,290 307,754
2013 683,319 274,064
2014 695,100 238,028
2015 662,505 202,825
2016 680,569 168,283
2017 699,327 132,792
2018 464,676 102,957
2019 476,431 78,958
2020 493,541 54,224
2021 502,253 33,854
2022 511,160 13,035
Total S 7,985,636 S 2,331,933

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 7—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)

Primary Government: (continued)

l.ong-term obligations at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

General Obligations:

incurred by County:

| ease Revenue Bonds:

$11,208,900 lease revenue bond issued May 28, 2009, payable in varying annual
installments, interest at 4.83%, through April 1, 2023.

$3,344,600 lease revenue bond issued May 28, 2009, payable in varying annual
installments, interest at 4.79%, through April 1, 2029,

Total lease revenue bonds
OPEB liability (payable by the general fund)
Landfill postclosure care liability (payable by the general fund)
Compensated absences (payable by the general fund)

Total Incurred by County

incurred by School Board:

General Obligation bonds

$1,000,000 school bond issued May 5, 1994, payable in varying amounts and interest
rates (6.19%-6.30%) through July 15, 2013

$1,285,000 school bond issued August 1, 1990, payable in varying amounts and
interest rates through July 15, 2015

$3,789,949 school bond issued November 1, 1996, payable in varying amounts and
interest rates through July 15, 2617

$1,850,000 school bond issued October 26, 2001, payable in varying amounts and
interest rates through July 15, 2021

$6,512,513 school bond issued October 26, 2001, payable in varying amounts and rates
through July 15, 2021

Total General Obligation Bonds
Total Incurred by School Board

Total General Obligations, Primary Government
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11,208,900

3,344,600

14,553,500

23,000

2,271,821

388,544

17,236,865

255,000

165,000

1,774,670

1,385,000

4,405,966

7,985,636

7,985,636

25,222,501




COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 7—Long-Term Obligations: (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component - Unit School Board:

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the Component Unit School Board for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:

Amounts Amounts
Payable Payable at Amounts
at July 1, June 30, Due Within
2008 Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Component Unit-School Board:
Early retirement liability 1) 553,216 $ -8 18,243 § 534,973 S 19,703
OPEB liability - 87,000 45,000 42,000
Total Component Unit-School Board ~ $ 553,216 § 87,000 $§ 63,243 § 576,973 § 19,703
Year Early Retirement
Ending Liability Payable
June 30 Principal Interest
2010 5 19,703 S 42,798
2011 21,279 41,222
2012 22,981 39,520
2013 24,820 37,681
2014 26,806 35,695
2015 28,950 33,551
2016 31,266 31,235
2017 33,767 28,734
2018 36,468 26,033
2019 39,386 23,115
2020 42,537 19,964
2021 45,940 16,561
2022 49,615 12,886
2023 53,584 8,917
2024 57,871 4,630
Total 5 534,973 § 402,542

$703,618 VRS early retirement incentive issued July 1, 1994, payable in annual amounts of

principal and interest of $62,501 through July 1, 2024, $534,973
OPEB liability {payabte from the School Fund) 42,000
Total Debt Incurred by the Schoot Board {payable from the School Fund) $576,973
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 8—Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, such amounts are
measurable, but not available. Deferred revenue totaling $942,079 is comprised of the following:

Deferred Property Tax Revenue - Deferred revenue representing uncollected tax billings not available for funding
of current expenditures totaled $823,118 at June 30, 2009.

Prepaid Property Taxes - Property taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2009 but paid in advance by the taxpayers
totaled $118,961 at June 30, 2009.

Note 9— Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

Federal programs in which the County and all discretely presented component units participate were audited in
accordance with the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Pursuant to the provisions of this circular all major programs and
certain other programs were tested for compliance with applicable grant requirements.

While no matters of noncompliance were disclosed by audit, the Federal Government may subject grant
programs to additional compliance tests which may result in disallowed expenditures. In the opinion of
management, any future disallowance of current grant program expenditures, if any, would be immaterial.

Note 10-Litigation:

At June 30, 2009, there were no matters of litigation involving the County or which would materially affect the
County's financial position should any court decisions on pending matters not be favorable to the County.

Note 11 —Risk Management:

The County and the Component Unit School Board are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government
carries insurance.

The County is a member of the Virginia Municipal Group Self Insurance Association for workers’ compensation.
This program is administered by a servicing contractor, which furnishes claims review and processing.

Each Association member jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any liabitity. The County
pays Virginia Municipal Group contributions and assessments based upon classifications and rates into a
designated cash reserve fund out of which expenses of the Association and claims and awards are to be paid. In
the event of a loss deficit and depletion of all available excess insurance, the Association may assess all members
in the proportion which the premium of each bears to the total premiums of all members in the year in which
such deficit occurs.
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COUNTY OF APPOMATTOX, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 11 —Risk Management: (Continued)

The County also participates with other localities in a public entity risk pool for their coverage of general liability
and auto insurance with Virginia Municipal League and public officials’ liability with the Virginia Association of
Counties Group Self Insurance Risk Pool. The County pays an annual premium to the pools for general insurance
through member premiums. The County continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. The
Component Unit School Board carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 12 —Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit School Board:

A. Plan Description

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
ldentification of Plan:  Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System)

The County and School Board contribute to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). School Board professional
employees participate in a VRS Statewide teacher cost sharing pool, and the County employees and School
Board nonprofessional employees participate as a separate group in the agent multiple-employer retirement
system.

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating employers must participate in the VRS, Benefits
vest after five years of service, Employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 65 with 5
years of service (age 60 for participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs) or at age
50 with at least 30 years of service if elected by the employer (age 50 with at least 25 years of service for
participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs) payable manthly for life in an amount
equal to 1.70% for their average final compensation (AFC) for each year of credited service (1.85% for sheriffs
and if the employer elects, for other employees in hazardous duty positions receiving enhanced benefits).
Benefits are actuarially reduced for retirees who retire prior to becoming eligible for full retirement benefits.

In addition, retirees qualify for annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) beginning in their second year of
retirement. The COLA is limited to 5.00% per year. AFC is defined as the highest consecutive 36 months of
reported compensation. Participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs may receive a
monthly benefit supplement if they retire prior to age 65. The VRS also provides death and disability
benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may be downloaded from
their website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/publications/2008AnnuRept.pdf or obtained by writing to the
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.0O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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As of June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Note 12 —Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit School Board: (Continued)

B.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5.00% of
their annual salary to the VRS. This 5.00% member contribution may be assumed by the employer. In
addition, the County and School Board are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
their participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the
VRS Board of Trustees. The County and School Board’s non-professional employees contribution rates for the
fiscal year ended 2009 were 10.71% and 6.14% of annual covered payroll, respectively.

The School Board’s professional employees contributed $939,345, $1,039,644, and $900,422, to the teacher
cost-sharing pool for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 respectively, and these
contributions represented 8.81%, 10.30%, and 9.20%, respectively, of current covered payroll.

Annuat Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2009, the County’s annual pension cost of $633,147 (which includes the employee portion
assumed by the County of $201,511) was equal to the County’s required and actuat contributions.

For fiscal year 2009, the County School Board’s annual pension cost for the Board's non-professional
employees was $76,759, (which includes the employee portion assumed by the County of $34,452) which was
equal to the Board’s required and actual contributions.

Annual Net
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) (1) Contributed Obligation

County:

June 30, 2009 S 431,636 100% S

June 30, 2008 382,396 100%

June 30, 2007 332,596 100%
School Board:
Non-Professional:

June 30, 2009 S 42,307 100% S -

June 30, 2008 48,605 100% -

June 30, 2007 59,661 100% -

(1) Employer portion only
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Note 12 —Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit School Board: (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry
age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2007 included (a) an investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.50%, (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60%
per year for general government employees and 3.50% to 4.75% for employees eligible for enhanced benefits
available to law enforcement officers, firefighters and Sheriffs, and (c) cost-of-living adjustment of 2.50% per
year. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include an inflation component
of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the County’s assets is equal to the modified market value of assets. This
method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of assets over a
five-year period. The County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage
of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2007 was 20 years.

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Primary Government plan was 86.05%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $16,884,274, and the actuarial value of assets was
$14,528,854, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $2,355,420. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,862,711, and ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 60.98%.

As of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the School Board’s Non-Professional plan was
109.83% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,040,746, and the actuarial value of assets
was $2,241,335, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of ($200,589). The covered
payroll {annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $622,331, and ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was negative 32.23%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits.
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Note 13 —Closure and Postclosure Costs:

The County closed its landfill and is liable for postclosure monitoring for a period of thirty years. In conjunction
with the closing of the landfill, an environmental engineering firm was engaged to devise a closure plan in
accordance with federat and State Regulations. The $2,271,821 reported as landfill postclosure liability at June
30, 2009, represents the estimated liability for postclosure monitoring over the remaining thirty years. These
amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care in 2009, Actual costs may be higher due
to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

The County has demonstrated financial assurance requirements for closure, postclosure care, and corrective
action cost through the submission of a Local Government Financial Test to the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality in accordance with Section 9VAC20-70 of the Virginia Administrative Code.

Note 14-Surety Bonds:

The Commonwealth of Virginia has established a Faithful Performance of Duty Bond Plan to cover the following
positions:

Amount
Division of Tisk Management,
Faithful Performance of Duty Schedute Position Bond:
Commonwealth Funds

Barbara R. Williams, Clerk of the Circuit Court S 115,430
Janet M. Belter, Treasurer 400,000
Sara R. Henderson, Commissioner of the Revenue 3,000
0. Wilson Staples, Sheriff 30,000
The above constitutional officers and subordinate employees - blanket bond 50,000

Note 15-Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions:

Plan Description

The County of Appomattox and the County of Appomattox Public Schools offer eligible retirees post-retirement
medical and dental coverage if they retire directly from the County or Schools and are eligible to receive an early
or regular retirement benefit from the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). Health benefits include medical,
disability and dental coverage.

Funding Policy

The County and the Schools in Appomattox allow retirees and their spouses continue to participate in the
County’s medical, dental and disability coverage plans. The retiree pays 100% of all premiums. Medical and
dental coverage stops at age 65 or when eligible for Medicare. Disability coverage changes to a carveout class at
eligibility for Medicare and stops at age 65.
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Note 15-Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions: (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The County and School Board’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The County and School Board have elected to
calculate the ARC as the normal cost plus amortization of the unfunded portion of actuarial accrued liability in
compliance with GASB 45 parameters. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The estimated contributions are based on projected medical premium payments and credit for the implicit rate
subsidy made during the year for the retired employees by the County and School Board. The following table
shows the components of the County and School Board’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the estimated amount
contributed to the plan, and changes in the County and School Board’s net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health
Plan:

Component
Primary Unit
Government School Board
Annual required contribution S 37,000 S 87,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation . -
Adjustment to annual required contribution - -
Annual OPEB cost {expense) S 37,000 § 87,000
Estimated Contributions made (14,000) (45,000)
Increase in net OPEB obtligation 23,000 42,000
Net QPEB obligation-beginning of year - -
Net OPEB obligation-end of year S 23,000 $§ 42,000

The County and School Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2009 were as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of Net

Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
County : 6/30/2009 5 37,000 37.84% S 23,000
Schools: 6/30/2009 87,000 51.72% 42,000
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Note 15-Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued):

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the County’s actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $822,355, all of which was
unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,862,711, and
the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 21.29 percent.

As of June 30, 2009, the School Board’s actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,933,645, all of which was
unfunded. The covered payroll {annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $10,715,957, and
the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 18.04 percent.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples included
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supptementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits,

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made:
Retirement age for active employees-Retirement eligible for medical benefits are assumed to occur beginning
once a participant attains age 50 and completes 15 or more years of service. In no event is an active participant

assumed to work beyond age 70.

Mortality-Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Tables for
males and females with a one year setback in pre-retirement for males and females.
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Note 15-Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued):

Methods and Assumptions (Continued)

Coverage elections - The actuary assumed that 50% of active participants who retire at age 50 or greater are
assumed to continue their coverage into retirement. 25% of their spouses are assumed to continue their
coverage into retirement. 100% of actives who become disabled (and 25% of their spouses} are assumed to
continue their coverage. :

Based on the historical and expected returns of the County and School Board’s short-term investment portfolio, a
discount of 4.50% was used. In addition, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liabitity is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 was thirty years.
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 8

REVENUES
General property taxes
Other local taxes
Permits, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses
Fines and forfeitures
Revenue from the use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellansous
Recavered costs
Intergovernmental revenues:
Appomattox School Board
Commonwealth
Federal
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund batances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -

Actual Positive

Orlginal Final Amounts {Neqgative)
$ 8418406 $ 8418406 $ 8,739,210 $ 320,804
2,272,600 2,272,600 2,146,757 (125,843)
113,100 113,100 159,932 46,832
30,000 30,000 19,785 (10,215)
384,045 384,045 115,715 {268,330}
250,922 250,922 168,082 (82,840)
86,502 86,502 219,427 132,925
75,340 75,340 78,034 2,694
- - 53,353 53,353
5,300,398 5,300,398 5,412,926 112,528
682,614 682,614 793,373 110,759
$ 17,613,927 §$ 17,613,927 § 17,006,594 % 292,667
$ 1508435 $ 1,506,534 $ 1,384,164 §$ 122,370
1,006,849 1,155,461 991,963 163,498
3,634,000 3,813,426 3,555,375 258,051
1,393,434 1,524,538 1,368,486 156,052
2,676,307 3,354,404 2,873,560 380,844
4,401,444 4,401,444 4,199,524 201,920
493,673 509,108 380,600 128,508
962,894 1,008,825 720,109 286,716
2,900,586 2,740,299 1,782,520 957,779
1,594,497 1,594,497 1,591,988 2,509
568,134 739,326 863,533 {124,207)
$ 21,140,253 $ 22,345,862 $ 19,811,822 § 2,534,040
$ (3,526,326) § (4,731,935) $ (1.905,228) $ 2,826,707
$ 599881 § 509,881 $ 1,101,679 § 501,798
- - {756,965) (756,965)
$ 599,881 § 599,881 § 344,714 § (255,167)
$ (2,926,445) $ (4,132,054) $§ (1,560,514) $§ 2,571,540
2,926,445 4,132,054 4,443,003 310,949
$ - 3 - $ 2882489 $ 2882489
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Schedule of Funding Progress-Virginia Retirement System

County of Appomattox, Virginia

Last Eight Fiscal Years

Exhibit 9

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial {Excess Funded) UAAL
Value of Accrued Actuarial Funded Annual as % of
Valuation Assets Liability Accrued Liability Ratio Covered Payroll
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) (3-2) (2)/(3) Payroll (4)/(6)
@) ) &) @) (5) () 7)
County:
6/30/2008 14,528,854 § 16,884,274 % 2,355,420 86.05% 3,862,711 60.98%
8/30/2007 13,009,420 15,181,452 2,172,032 B5.69% 3,716,487 58.44%
8/30/2006 11,422,045 12,970,976 1,548,931 88.06% 3,204,187 48.34%
6/30/2005 10,567,651 12,474,514 1,906,863 84.71% 2,936,907 64.93%
6/30/2004 10,108,022 11,350,662 1,242,640 89.05% 2,855,983 43.51%
6/30/2003 9,778,261 10,406,571 630,310 93.94% 2.816,707 22.38%
6/30/2002 9,475,523 9,477,867 2,344 99.98% 2,748,741 0.09%
6/30/2001 9,011,744 8,769,068 (242,676) 102.77% 2,700,675 -8.99%
School Board Non-Professionals;
6/30/2008 $ 2,241,336 $ 2,040,746 $ (200,589) 109.83% 622,331 -32.23%
6/30/2007 2,033,380 2,070,542 37,162 98.21% 795,331 4.87%
6/30/2008 1,792,492 1,875,955 83,463 95.55% 780,958 10.69%
6/30/2005 1,710,788 1,891,413 180,625 90.45% 736,895 24.51%
6/30/2004 1,678,809 1,570,229 (108,680) 106.91% 660,514 -16.44%
6/30/2003 1,669,062 1,439,863 (229,199) 115.92% 599,423 -38.24%
6/30/2002 1,675,942 1,344,901 (331,041) 124.61% 655,012 -50.54%
6/30/2001 1,610,915 1,237,113 (373,802) 130.22% 650,447 -57.47%
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Insurance Plan

Last Fiscal Year

Exhibit 10

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial  (Excess Funded) UAAL
Value of Accrued Actuarial Funded Annual as % of
Valuation Assets Liability Accrued Liability Ratio Covered Payroll
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) (3-2) (2)/(3) Payroll (4)/(6)
™ @ 3) @) (8) () 7)
Primary Government;
7/1/2008 § - $ 822,355 § 822,355 0.00% % 3,862,711 21.29%
Discretely Presented Component Unit:
7/1/2008 $ - $ 1933645 § 1,933,645 0.00% $ 10,715,957 18.04%
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Exhibit 11
County of Appomattox, Virginia
County Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property & - 3 - $ 28,093 % 28,093
Total revenues $ - 8§ - 8§ 28,093 § 28,093
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Capital Projects 3 - $ - % 334,967 % (334,967)
Debt service:
Interest and other fiscal charges - - 402,825 (402,825)
Total expenditures 3 - % - § 737,792 % (737,792)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures $ - 8 - 3 (709,699) $ {709,699)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ - % - $ 756,965 $ 756,965
Transfers out - - (1,079,317} (1,079,317)
Debt issuance - - 3,344,600 3,344,600
Issuance of refunding bonds - - 11,208,200 11,208,900
Redemption of refunding bonds - - (10,848,742} (10,848,742)
Total other financing sources and uses 3 - 3 - $ 3382406 % 3,382,406
Net change in fund balances $ - 3 - % 2,672,707 % 2,672,707
Fund balances - beginning - - 6,252,587 6,252,587
Fund balances - ending $ - $ - $ 8025204 $ 8,925,294
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

County of Appomattox, Virginia

County Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 12

REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental revenues:
Commonwealth
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund halances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

County Special Revenue Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ - 8 - % 1,309 § 1,309
- - 3,491 3,491
- - 10,336 10,336
9,201 9,201 53,109 43,908
$ 9,201 % 9,201 § 688,245 § 59,044
$ -5 - 3 1,751 §$ {1,751)
$ - 3 -3 1,751 § (1,751)
$ 9,201 $ 9,201 % 66,494 § 57,293
3 - $ - 3 {22,362) $ {22,362)
$ - 3 - $ (22,362) § {22,362)
5 9201 $ 9,201 § 44132 % 34,931
- 354,986 354,986
$ 9201 3 9,201 % 399,118 3% 389,917
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Combining Statement of Fiduclary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009

Exhibit 13

Agency Funds
Special Jail Sheriff
Welfare Inmate Drug Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,307 § 347 $ 6,531 $ 19,185
Total assets 3 12,307 $ 347 § 6,531 $ 19,185
LIABILITIES
Amounts held for social services clients $ 12,307 $ - % - % 12,307
Amounts held for others - - 6,531 6,531
Amaounts held for inmates - 347 - 347
Total liahilities $ 12,307  § 347 % 6,531 $ 19,185
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 14

Special Welfare Fund:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities:
Amounts held for social services clients
Jail Inmate Fund:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities:
Amounts held for inmates

Sheriff Drug Fund:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities:
Amounts held for others

Totals -- All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities:
Amounts held for others
Amounts held for inmates
Amounts held for social services clients
Total kabilities

Balance Balance
Beginning End of
of Year Additions Deletions Year

13,068 36,932 37,693 12,307
13,068 36,932 37,693 12,307
560 22,332 22,545 347
560 22,332 22,545 347
3,651 8,250 5,370 6,531
3,651 8,250 5,370 6,531
17,279 87,514 65,608 19,185
3,651 8,250 5,370 6,531
560 22,332 22.545 347
13,068 36,932 37,693 12,307
17,279 67,514 65,608 19,185
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Combining Balance Sheet

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board

June 30, 2009

Exhibit 15

School
School Special Total
Operating Revenue Governmental
Fund fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,393,741 1,262,884 3,656,625
Cash in custody of others - 4,000 4,000
Receivables {net of allowance
for uncollectibles):
Accounts receivable 33,750 84 33,834
Due from other governmental units 502,354 - 602,354
Total assets $ 3,029,845 1,266,968 4,296,813
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities;
Accounts payable $ 58,474 321 58,795
Accrued liabilities 1,721,741 55,677 1,777,418
Due to other governmental units 577,630 - 577,630
Total liabilities $ 2,357,845 55,998 2,413,843
Fund balances:
Unreserved:;
Designated for subsequent expenditure $ 670,000 - 670,000
Undesignated 2,000 1,210,970 1,212,970
Total fund balances $ 672,000 1,210,970 1,882,970
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 3,029,845 1,266,968 4,298,813
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit 1) are
different because:;
Total fund batances per above 1,882,970
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 9,696,615
Long-term liabilitias, including VRS early retirement incentive, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (b76,973)
Net assets of governmental activities 11,002,612
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

County of Appomattox, Virginia

Exhibit 16

REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Recovered costs
Intergovernmental revenues:

Local government

Commonwealih

Federal

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Education
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statemant of activities (Exhibit 2) are

different because:

Nel change in fund balances - total governmentat funds - per above

Governmental funds report capital cutfays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activilies the cost of those assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which the capital outlays exceeded

depreciation in the current period.

Capital asset additions
Depreciation expense

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-ferm debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmentat funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amaortized in the stalement of activities, This amount is the net effect
of these differences in the freatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

{Increase) decrease in OPEB liability

School
Scheol Special Total
Oparating Revenue Governmental
Fund Eund Funds

$ 10,545 $ 5,893 16,438
80,508 412,245 492,753

203,627 - 203,627

32,514 - 32,514

4,199,148 - 4,199,148
15,125,624 13,548 15,139,172
1,278,603 522,060 1,801,563

$ 20,930,569 § 954,646 21,885,215
$ 20,186,514 § 1,095,041 21,281,555
11,554 - 11,654

18,243 - 18,243

44,258 - 44,258

$ 20,260,569 % 1,095,041 21,355,610
$ 670,000 § (140,395) 529,605
8 670,000 § {140,395) 529,605
2,000 1,361,365 1,363,365

[ 672,000 % 1,210,970 1,882,970
529,605

5 873,306

(772,430) 100,876

$ 18,243 18,243
$ {42,000) {42,000)

606,724

Change in net assets of governmental activilies
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 17

REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Recovered costs
Intergovernmental revenues:

Local government

Commeoenwealth

Federal

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Education
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

School Operating Fund

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 7,000 $ 7,000 § 10,545 § 3,545
9,600 9,600 80,508 70,908
77,700 77,700 203,627 125,927
15,500 15,500 32,514 17,014
4,401,068 4,401,068 4,199,148 (201,920)
15,609,340 15,609,340 15,125,624 (483,716)
1,359,482 1,359,492 1,278,603 {80,889)
$ 21,479,700 § 21479700 $ 20,930,569 § (549,131}
$ 21,097,199 $ 21,097,199 $ 20,186,514 $ 910,685
20,000 20,000 11,554 8,446
18,243 18,243 18,243 -
44,258 44 258 44,258 -
$ 21179700 $ 21,179,700 $ 20,260,569 $ 919,131
$ 300,000 % 300,000 $ 670,000 & 370,000
$ (300,000) $ (300,000) $ - $ 300,000
$ (300,000} $ (300,000) $ - $§ 300,000
$ - § - 8 670,000 $§ 670,000
- - 2,000 2,000
$ - $ - § 672,000 $§ 672,000
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 18

REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellansous
Intergovernmental revenues:

Commonwealth

Federal

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Education
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund halances - beginning
Fund halances - ending

School Special Revenue Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 16,000 $ 16,000 $ 5893 § {10,107)
425,000 425,000 412,245 {12,755)
2,600 2,600 - {2,600)
13,163 13,163 13,548 385
409,000 409,000 522,860 113,960
§ 865,763 3§ 865,763 $ 954646 3 88,883
$ 1,246170 $ 1,246,170 $ 1,095041 $ 151,129
$ 1,246,170 $ 1,246,170 $ 1,095,041 § 151,129
$ (380,407) $ (380,407) $ (140,395) § 240,012
$ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ - $  (300,000)
$ 300,000 $ 300,000 § - § (300,000
$ (80,407) $ (80,407) $ (140,395) $ (69,988)
80,407 80,407 1,351,365 1,270,958
$ - % - % 1,210970 $ 1,210,970
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Exhibit 19
County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Economic Development Authority
June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 75,085
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land $ 1,386,773
Infrastructure 1,861,204
Less accumulated depreciation (347,076)
Total capital assets $ 2,800,901
Total noncurrent assets $ 2,900,901
Total assets $ 2,975,986
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 2,800,901
Unrestricted 75,085
Total net assets $ 29750986
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Economic Development Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit 20

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Bond fees
Materials and supplies
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Other supplies and expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

QOperating income (loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings

Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending
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$ 9,375
4,072
$ 13,447
$ 826
46,530
$ 47,356
3 (33,908)
$ 455
$ 455
$ (33,454)
3,009,440
$ 2,975,986




Exhibit 21
County of Appomattox, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Economic Development Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users $ 13,447
Payments for operating activities {826)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 12,621
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received $ 455
Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivities $ 455
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,076
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 62,009
Cash and cash equivalents - ending 3 75,085

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used} by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (33,909)
Adjustments to reconcile gperating income {loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 46,530
Total adjustments $ 46,530
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 12,621
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County of Appomattox, Virginia Schedule 1
Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual Page 1 of 6
Governmantal Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -
Qriginal Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budgef Budget Actual (Negative}
General Fund:
Revenue from local sources:
General property taxes:

Real property taxes $ 5679072 § 5679,072 3§ 5654070 § (25,002)

Real and personal public service corporation taxes 211,604 211,604 370,770 169,166

Personal property taxes 2,042 385 2,042,385 2,157,371 114,986

Machinery and tools taxes 303,288 303,288 350,674 47,386

Marchant's capital taxes 82,057 82,057 83,407 1,350
Penalties 65,000 65,000 82,586 17,586
Interest 35,000 35,000 40,332 5,332

Total general property laxes $ 8418406 $ 8418408 $ 8,739,210 $ 320,804

Other 1ocal taxes:

l.ocal sales and use taxes $ 200,000 % 900,000 $ BO7,068 & (92,932}

Consumers' utility taxes 330,000 330,000 335,914 5,914
Communication taxes 600,000 600,000 587,301 (12,609)
Motor vehicle licenses 350,000 350,000 329,574 {20,428)
Taxes on recordation and wills 92,600 92,600 86,810 (5,790)
Total other local taxes $ 2272600 $ 2272600 $ 2,146,757 3  (125,843)

Parmits, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses:

Animal licenses 3 4000 $ 4000 $ 9,798 $ 5,798
Permits and other licenses 109,100 108,100 150,134 41,034
Total permits, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses $ 113100 $ 113,100 $ 159932 § 46,832
Fines and forfeitures:
Court fines and forfeitures 3 30,000 § 30,000 $ 19,785 3 (10,215)
Total fines and forfeitures $ 30,000 % 30,000 % 19,785 § (10,215)
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money $ 300,000 $ 300,000 % 72668 $ (227,332)
Revenue from use of property 84,045 84,045 43,047 (40,998)
Tolal revenue from use of money and property $ 384,045 $ 384,045 $ 1157156 $ (268,330)
Charges for services:
Sheriff's fees $ 794 $ 794 % 794 $ -
Charges for Commonwealth's Attorney 450 450 655 205
Charges for sanitation and waste removal 186,378 186,378 112,305 (74,073)
Charges for planning and community development 100 100 2 (98)
Charges for correction and detention 12,700 12,700 13,219 519
Charges for other protection 8500 500 2,145 1,645
Charges for recreation 36,000 36,000 23,161 (12,839)
Charges for library 14,000 14,000 15,801 1,801
Total charges for services $ 250922 $ 250,922 $ 168,082 $  (82,840)
Miscellanesous revenue;
Miscellaneous $ 86,502 $ 86,502 $ 219427 $ 132,925
Total miscellangous revenue $ 86,502 $ 86,502 $§ 219427 $ 132,925
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County of Appomattox, Virginia Schedule 1
Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual Page 2 of &
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
General Fund: (Continued)
Revenue from local sources: (Continued)
Recoversd costs:
Refunds and recoveries 3 20,650 $ 20,650 % 22198 % 1,648
Town recoveries 54,690 54,690 55,836 1,146
Total recovered costs § 75340 § 75340 $ 78,034 $ 2,694
Total revenue from focal sources $ 11,630,915 $ 11,630,815 $ 11,646,942 3 16,027
Intergovernmental revenues:
Revenues from local governments:
Contribution from Appomattox County School Board $ - $ - $ 53353 $ 53,3583
Total revenues from local governments 3 - $ - $ 53353 8 53,383
Revenue from the Commonwealth;
Noncategorical aid:
ABC profits : $ 6889 % 6,889 % - % (6,889)
Wine taxes 7,222 7,222 - (7,222)
Motor vehicle carriers' fax 545 545 - (545)
Mobile home titling tax 35,000 35,000 60,502 25,502
Relling stock tax 30,000 30,000 38,801 8,801
Auto rental tax 16,186 16,186 26,009 9,823
Additional tax on deeds 25,000 25,000 19,634 {5,366)
State recordation tax 23,000 23,000 34,471 11,471
Personal property tax relief funds 1,023,637 1,023,637 1,023,637 -
Payback to the Commonwealth - - (112,534) {112,634)
Total noncategorical aid $ 1167478 $ 1,167,479 § 1,090520 $ (76,959)

Categorical afd:
Shared expenses:

Commonwealth's attorney $ 318286 $ 318286 $ 307079 $ {11,207}
Sheriff 1,311,145 1,311,145 1,264,728 (46,417)
Commissioner of revenue 116,327 116,327 114,210 (2,117)
Treasurer 106,161 106,161 103,328 (2,833)
Medical examiner 700 700 - {700)
Registrar/electoral board 50,000 50,000 57,250 7,250

Clerk of the Circuit Court 167,110 167,110 172,009 4,899

Total shared expenses $ 2069729 $ 2069729 $ 2018604 $ (51,125)

Other categorical aid:

Public assistance and welfare administration $ 478845 § 478845 $ 503,092 $ 24,247
Comprehensive services act 718,390 718,390 1,041,629 323,139
Emergency medical services 29,844 29,844 - (29,844)
Tobacco revitalization 571,401 571,401 400,410 (170,991}
Fire programs fund 30,979 30,979 31,981 1,002
Local jail block grant 100,000 100,000 84,628 (15,372)
Library grant 37,000 37,000 45,135 8,135
Part-time attorney grant 40,000 40,000 50,000 10,000
Department of forestry grant 30,000 30,000 23,490 (6,510)
Victim witness grant 18,000 18,000 21,981 3,981
Litter control grant 8,731 8,731 8,501 (230}
Sheriffs overtime grant - - 3,364 3,364
CVCC repairs - - 6,200 6,200
Juvenile and domestic electronic monitoring - - 2,040 2,040
Circuit court clerk grant - - 11,810 11,910
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 1
Page 3 0f 6

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Generat Fund: (Continued)
Revenue from the Commonwealth: (Continued)
Categorical aid: (Continued)
Cther categorical aid: (Conlinued)
LIDS/SSA local inmate grant $ - % - 1,800 § 1,800
Byrne shariff's department grant - - 621 621
PSAP Virginia wireless grant - - 87,120 67,120
Total other categorical aid $ 2,063,190 $ 2,063,190 2,303,802 § 240,612
Total categorical aid $ 4,132,919 $ 4,132,919 4322406 $ 189,487
Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 5,300,398 $ 5,300,398 5412926 § 112,528
Revenue from the federal governmaent:
Noncategorical aid:
Payments in lieu of taxes $ 4,200 § 4,200 6,090 3 1,890
Categorical aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration $ 678414 § 678,414 725,835 §$ 47,421
Transportation safety - - 14,248 14,248
Homeland security grant - - 47,200 47,200
Total categorical aid 3 678,414 § 678,414 787,283 § 108,869
Total revenue from the federal government $ 682814 3 682,614 793,373 & 110,759
Total General Fund $ 17,613,927 § 17,613,927 17,906,594 $ 292,667
Special Revenue Fund:
County Special Revenue Fund:
Revenue from local sources:
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of money $ - % - 1,309 § 1,309
Charges for services:
Court costs- law library $ - § - 3491 § 3,491
Miscellaneous revenue:
Jail collections $ - 8 - 6,876 $ 6,876
Forfeited assets - - 3,002 3,002
Other miscellaneous - - 458 458
Total miscellaneous revenue § - % - 10,336 § 10,336
Ravenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
Forfeited assets 3 - 3 - 3,219 % 3,219
Wireless grant - - 40,689 40,689
Comprehensive services 9,201 9,201 9,201 -
Total categorical aid $ 9,201 % 9,201 53,108 % 43,908
Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 9,201 % 9,201 53,109 § 43,908
Total County Special Revenue Fund 3 8,201 § 9,201 68,245 § 59,044

58




County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 1
Page 4 of 6

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Posifive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual {Negative}
Capital Projects Fund:
County Capital Projects Fund:
Revenue from local sources:
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of money $ - § - § 28,093 § 28,083
Total revenue from use of money and property $ - 8 - § 28,093 § 28,003
Total revenue from local sources $ - 3 - § 28,093 § 28,093
Total County Capital Projects Fund $ - 8 - $ 28,093 § 28,093
Total Primary Government $ 17,623,128 & 17,623,128 § 18,002,932 § 379,804
Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board:
Special Revenue Funds:
School Operating Fund:
Revenue from local sources:
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of property $ 7,000 § 7,000 § 10,545 $ 3,545
Charges for services:
Charges for education 3 9,600 § 9,600 § 80,508 % 70,908
Miscellaneous revenue:
Miscellaneous $ 77,700 § 77700 $§ 203627 § 125927
Recavered costs:
Tuition from other counties $ 15,500 $ 15,500 $ 32514 § 17,014
Total recovered costs 3 15,500 § 15,5600 % 32514 § 17.014
Total revenue from local sources $§ 109,800 $§ 109800 $ 327,194 § 217,394
Intergovernmental revenues:
Revenues from local governmenis:
Contribution from County of Appomattox $ 4,401,068 $ 4,401,068 $ 4,199,148 § (201,920)
Total revenues from local governments $ 4,401,068 $ 4,401,068 $ 4,199.148 § (201,920)
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
Share of stale sales tax $ 2006641 $ 2,096,641 § 1,894,727 § (201,914)
Basic school aid 8,830,616 8,830,616 8,519,619 (310,997)
English as a second language - - 886 886
Adult secondary education 3,386 3,386 3,536 150
Gifted and talented 76,667 76,667 73,565 (3,102)
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 1
Page 5of 6

Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board: {Continued)

Special Revenue Funds: (Continued)
School Operating Fund: (Continued)
Revenue from the Commonwealth: {Continued)
Categorical aid: (Continued)

Remedial education

Special education

Textbook payment

ISAEP

Vocational education

Electronic classroom

School fringes

Foster care

Cccupational preparation

Career and technical education

Early reading intervention

Remedial Ed-Summer School

Homebound

School construction

Additional construction support

Headstart

K-3 initiative

VA preschool initiative payments

Enrollment loss

Lottery proceeds

At risk payments

Technology grant

Standards of Learning algebra readiness

Mentor teachers

Virtual advanced placement

Other state aid

Total categorical aid

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:
Title |
Vocational education
Title Il Part A
Drug free schools
Title VIB
Goals 2000
Class size reduction
Preschool grant
21st Century learning grant
Literacy challenge
Carl Perkins Grant
innovative reading programs
Education technology
Teacher training
Total categorical aid

Total revenue from the federal government

Total School Operating Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative}
$ 190816 $ 190,816 § 183,096 % (7.720)
1,003,488 1,003,488 1,145,004 141,516
201,824 201,924 193,755 (8,169)
7,859 7,859 7,859 -
353,555 353,555 338,400 (15,155)
40,000 40,000 - (40,000}
1,071,637 1,071,637 1,028,278 (43,358)
26,897 26,897 35,744 8,847
167,921 167,921 15,065 (152,856)
29,677 29,677 - (29,677)
41,773 41,773 34,811 {6,962)
100,377 100,377 114,767 14,390
18,451 18,451 15,241 (3,210)
135,068 135,068 134,758 {310)
- - 324,717 324,717
158,574 158,574 - (158,574)
286,995 286,995 269,309 (17,686)
- - 242,931 242,931
- - 188,787 188,787
405,927 405,927 - (405,827}
173,856 173,866 166,811 (7,045)
154,000 154,000 154,000 -
23,705 23,705 26,025 2,320
3,785 3,785 3,232 {553)
- - 702 702
5,745 5,745 9,998 4,253
$ 15,609,340 § 15,609,340 §$ 15,125,624 § (483,716)
$ 15,609,340 $ 15,600,340 § 15125624 § (483,716)
$ 483284 $ 483,284 $ 443625 § {39,659)
- - 41,096 41,096
- - 92,360 92,380
10,171 10,171 6,688 (3,483)
437,261 437,261 453,620 16,359
4,950 4,950 - (4,950}
222,164 222,164 - (222,164)
17,630 17,630 17,630 -
20,000 20,000 221,044 201,044
2,743 2,743 - (2,743}
44,857 44,857 - (44,857}
5,934 5,934 - (5,934}
- - 2,540 2,540
110,498 110,498 - {110,498}
$ 1,350,492 $ 1,359,492 § 1,278,603 § (80,889)
$ 1,359492 $ 1,350,492 $ 1,278,603 § {80,889)
$ 21,479,700 $ 21,479,700 $ 20,930,569 $  (549,131)
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County of Appomattox, Virginia Schedule 1
Schedutle of Revenues - Budget and Actual Page 6 of 6
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budgeat Budget Actual {Negative)
Discretely Prasented Component Unit - School Board: (Continued)
School Special Revenue Funds: {Continued)
School Special Revenue Fund:
Revenue from local sources:
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of money $ 18,000 % 16,000 § 5893 § (10,107}
Charges for services:
Cafeteria sales $ 425000 $ 425000 $ 407,163 §  (17,837)
Textbook fees 5,082 5,082

425000 $ 425000 § 412,245 §  (12,755)

Total charges for services $
Miscellaneous revenue:
Miscellaneous $ 2,600 % 2,600 § . $ {2,600}
Total miscellaneous revenue $ 2600 3 2,600 § - b (2,600}
Total revenue from local sources $ 443600 § 443600 $ 418,138 § (25,462)
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
School food program grant $ 13,163 $ 13,163 § 13,648 § 385
Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 13,163 § 13,163 § 13,548 $ 385
Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:
Schoo! food program grant $ 409,000 $ 400,000 $ 457,232 § 48,232
Commodities - - 65,728 65,728
Total categorical aid $ 409,000 $ 409,000 $% 522,080 $% 113,960
Total revenue from the federal government $ 400,000 § 409,000 $ 522960 % 113,960
Total Schoo! Special Revenue Fund $ 865763 $ 865763 $ 954646 3 88,883
Total Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board $ 22,345,463 §$ 22345463 § 21885215 §  (460,248)
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 2
Page 1 of 4

Fund, Major and Minor Expendifure Source

General Fund:
General government administration:
Legislative:
Board of supervisors

General and financial administration:
County administrator
Legal services
Commissioner of revenue
Independent auditor
Treasurer
Management information systems
Total general and financial administration

Board of elections:
Electoral board and officials
Registrar
Total board of elections

Total general government administration

Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circuit court
General district court
Special Magistrates
Court services unit
Juvenile and domestic relations court
Sheriff
Witness advocate grant
VA domestic victim grant
Clerk of the circuit court
Total courts

Commonwealth's attorney:
Commonwealth's attorney
Total commonwealth's attorney

Total judicial administration

Public safety;
Law enforcement and traffic control:
Sheriff
School resource officer
DARE
DMV traffic control grant
Total law enforcement and traffic control

Fire and rescue services:
Fire department
Ambulance and rescue services
Forestry service
Total fire and rescue services

Correction and detention:
Sheriff
Total correction and detention
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Variance with

Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 200028 $ 185575 $ 170,743 $ 14,832
$ 369306 % 379583 § 371735 B 7,848
24,500 37,200 34,422 2,778
324 855 324,855 310,429 14,426
48,000 34,000 31,500 2,500
262,281 272,756 261,913 10,843
141,750 141,750 80,351 61,399

$ 1,170,602 $ 1,190,144 $ 1,090,350 $ 99,794
$ 48,636 $ 51,636 §$ 46,278 § 5,358
79,179 79,179 76,793 2,386

$ 127815 $§ 130815 § 123071 § 7,744
$ 1508435 $ 1506534 $ 1384164 % 122370
$ 21,360 % 21,360 § 19460 $ 1,800
3,006 3,006 2,933 73

850 850 795 55
202,532 202,632 174,501 28,031
5,188 5,188 4,208 980
71,041 77,878 77,762 116
21,359 21,398 21,299 99
39,810 152,832 51,421 101,411
246,322 274,826 253,120 21,708

$ 611468 $ 759870 $ 605499 $ 154,371
$ 39538t $ 395591 $ 386,464 $ 9,127
$ 395381 $§ 395581 $ 386464 § 9,127
$ 1006849 § 1155461 § 991,983 § 163,498
$ 2,010,857 $ 2069490 $ 1981577 $ 87,913
94,656 94,656 91,403 3,253

2,000 2,713 2,713 -

- 23,881 14,687 9,194

$ 2,107,593 $ 2,190,740 $ 2,090,380 $ 100,360
$ 140388 $ 163,910 § 161,195 § 2,715
27,386 27,386 38,693 (11,307}
11,124 11,124 8,573 2,551

$ 178,008 % 202420 $ 208461 % (6,041)
$§ 395526 $ 395982 & 301,910 § 94,072
$ 395526 F 395982 % 301,910 % 94,072




County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 2
Page 2 of 4

Fund, Major and Minor Expenditure Source

General Fund: (Continued)
Public safety: (Continued)
inspections:
Building
Total inspections
Other protection:
Animal control
Emergency services
E-911
Road viewers
Medical examiner
Total other protection

Total public safety

Public works;
Sanitation and waste removal:
Refuse disposal
Tire security
Refuse collection
Total sanitation and waste removal

Maintenance of general buildings and grounds:
General properiies
Total maintenance of general buildings and grounds

Total public works

Heatth and welfare:
Health:
Local health department
Total health

Mental health and mental retardation:
Central VA Community Services
Central VA Commission on Aging
Total mental health and mental retardation

Welfare:
Public assistance and welfare administration
State and local hospitalization
Comprehensive services act
Total welfare

Total heaith and welfare

Education:
Other instructional costs:
Contributions to Community College
Contribution to County School Board
Total education

Parks, recreation, and cuftural:
Parks and recreation:
Supervision of parks and recreation
Total parks and recreation
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Variance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 70,5685 3 72248 $ 69,304 $ 2,944
$ 70,585 § 72,248 § 69,304 $ 2,944

$ 149,841 $ 155,914 % 158,006 % {2,092)
12,440 12,440 11,304 1,136
718,387 766,777 699,765 67,012
300 16,405 16,105 300
500 500 140 360
$ 881468 3 0952036 3 885320 § 66,716
$ 3,634,000 $ 3,813426 $ 3555375 § 258,051
$ 721,400 § 722,159 $ 628610 $ 93,549
42,180 42,180 40,9256 1,255
247,073 248,153 196,310 51,843
$ 1010653 $ 1012492 $ 865,845 § 146,647
$ 382781 3 512046 $ 502641 9,405
3 382,781 & 512,046 § 502,641 § 8,405
$ 1393434 $ 1524538 $ 1,308,486 $ 156,052
$§ 130550 $ 130550 & 127,300 % 3,250
$ 130550 $ 130550 3 127,300 3 3,250
$ 38,555 % 38,555 % 38,555 % -
5,768 5,768 5,768 -
3 44,323 § 44,323 § 44323 § -
$ 1,463,037 $ 1,648,937 $ 1,478,770 $ 170,167
12,223 12,223 11,140 1,083
1,026,174 1,518,371 1,312,027 208,344
$ 2501434 § 3179531 $ 2,801,937 § 377,594
$ 2676307 $ 3354404 $ 2973560 $ 380,844
$ 376 376 $ 376 § -
4,401,068 4,401,068 4,198,148 201,920
$ 4401444 $ 4401444 $ 4199624 % 201,920
] 293569 $ 203568 § 170,118 123,461
$ 293,569 % 293,569 $ 170,118 $ 123,451




County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 2
Page 3 of 4

Fund, Major and Minor Expenditure Source

General Fund: {Continued)
Parks, recreation, and cultural: (Continuad)
Cultural enrichment;
Contributions
Total cultural enrichment

Library;
Public library
Total library

Total parks, recreation, and cultural

Communily development:
Planning and community development:
Planning and zoning
Tourism
Economic development
Total planning and community development

Environmental management:
Contribution to soil and water conservation district
Erosion and sediment control
Litter control program
Recycling
Total environmental management

Cooperative extension program:
Extension office
Total cooperative extension program

Total community development

Capital projects:
Town/County Sewer Project
CVCC Phase I
Waterline project
Regicnal jail
Landfill cell
Regional landfill
Landfill gas extraction
Total capital projects

Debt service:
Principal retirement
interest and other fiscal charges
Total debt service

Total General Fund
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Variance with

Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 14,315 % 14,339 $ 13,838 501
$ 14,315 § 14,339 $ 13838 $ 501
$ 185789 3 201,200 $ 196644 $ 4,556
$ 185789 $ 201,200 $ 196644 3 4,556
$ 403673 $ 509108 $§ 380,600 % 128508
$ 162,168 $ 162168 $ 1209000 § 32,268
40,000 40,000 21,623 18,377
612,231 627,439 415,731 211,708

$ 814399 $ 8290607 $§ 567254 & 262,353
$ 10,000 3 10,000 $ 10,000 $ -
60,072 60,072 58,421 1,651

7,500 8,501 8,501 -
21,300 43,951 35,900 8,051

3 98872 $§ 122524 § 112822 § 9,702
3 49,623 3% 54,694 $ 40,033 § 14,661
$ 49623 % 54,694 $ 40,033 § 14,661
$ 9628394 % 1008825 § 720108 $ 286,716
$ 76,573 % 76,573 $ 76,573 % -
405,382 390,174 28,225 361,949

- - 402,795 {402,795)

196,039 50,000 50,000 -
2,126,985 2,126,985 1,128,360 998,625
95,607 95,607 95,607 -

- 960 960 -

$ 2900586 $ 2,740,299 $ 1,782,520 $ 957,778
$ 1594497 $ 1594497 $ 1,591,988 $ 2,508
568,134 739,328 863,533 (124,207}

$ 2,162631 $ 2,333,823 $ 2455521 $  (121,698)
$ 21,140,253 $ 22,345,862 $ 19,811,822 $ 2,534,040




County of Appomattox, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Schedule 2
Page 4 of 4

Fund, Major and Minor Expenditure Source

Special Revenue Fund:
County Special Revenue Fund:
Public Safety:
Sheriff:
Asset forfeiture
Total public safety

Total County Special Revenue Fund

Capital Projects Fund:
County Capital Projects Fund:
Capital projects:
County schocls
Total capital projects

Debt service;
Interest and other fiscal charges
Debt issuance costs
Total debt service

Taotal County Capital Projects Fund
Total Primary Government

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board:
Special Revenue Funds:
School Operating Fund:
Education:

Administration, health, and attendance

[nstruction costs

Pupil transportation

Operation and maintenance of schoal plant

Total education

Capital projects:
Architectural and engineering fees
Total capital projects

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other fiscal charges
Total debt service

Total School Operating Fund

School Special Revenue Fund:
Education:
School food services
Purchase of textbooks
Contribution to Appomattox County
Commodities
Total education

Total School Speciat Revenue Fund

Total Discretely Presented Component Unit - Schaol Board
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Variance with

Final Budget -
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
8 - $ - % 1,751 % (1,751)
$ - $ - % 1,751 § (1,751)
$ - § - $ 1,751 § (1,751)
$ - § - $ 334,967 §  (334,967)
3 - % - $ 334967 § (334,967)
$ - % - § 212493 §  (212,493)
- - 180,332 (190,332)
$ - % - § 402,825 3§ (402,825)
$ - § - & 737,792 § (737,792}
$ 21,140,253 $ 22,345,862 § 20,551,365 § 1,794,497
$ 1453558 § 1,453,558 § 1,194,006 $ 259,552
15,783,525 15,783,525 15,390,281 393,244
1,514,012 1,514,012 1,236,397 277,615
2,346,104 2,346,104 2,365,830 (19,726)
$ 21,097,199 % 21,097,199 § 20,186,514 § 910,685
$ 20,000 § 20,000 $ 11,554 § 8,446
$ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 11,654 § 8,446
$ 18,243 $ 18,243 $ 18,243 % -
44,258 44,258 44,258 -
$ 62,501 § 62,501 § 62,501 § -
$ 21,179,700 $ 21,179,700 $ 20,260,569 $ 919,131
$ 946,170 $ 946,170 $ 933,218 § 12,952
300,000 300,000 42,742 257,258
- - 53,353 (53,353)
- - 65,728 (65,728)
$ 1,246,170 $ 1,246,170 % 1,095041 § 151,129
$ 1,246,170 $ 1,246,170 $ 1,085041 § 151,129
$ 22425870 $ 22,425,870 § 21,355,610 % 1,070,260




OTHER STATISTICAL INFORMATION




THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY




‘slEBA USASS J0j S|qejiese usaqg Ajuo sey uoneuuopup L)

D
O

Z8.'196'61 y.2'G¥6 950°19.L £e0'80Y G/£'986'Y 886°296'C 80Z'28r'e ZYS'9BL'E 0soect’) 955'G.¥'L 600¢
FAsouelTAAR G96'298 £09'68Z 8G9°//¢€ 2e9'8LL'Y G88°06.°C §59'vSe’l 969'895'C ¥16'650°L 8LELLLL 800¢
0L2'041L°GL £19'866 208°9rS (800'92) LP8'8YS'y 9e7'60E'T 895°99L" L £9Z°LLL'E YEY'ZS0'L £0G'90E"L 4002
¥9Z'SZS' vl 6¥2'986 ocs oy 09L'L¥2 GZ6'65E'Y 806°L6.°) 082'999°L 109'G98'Z vLL'GL8 LeP'6Ee’ L 9002
989°195°ct £€2'658 048971 LLO'L8Y OFL'69%'% 6286'099°L 082°25€') £P0'6ER°C £61'686 208041} S00¢
1ZAN AR SN} 0ES'E68 5£9'902 gLl'ore 129910 961°G0G" L 116°296 8Z6°1Z5°C 188'2¢s FANAL TAS] 002
0ZE'TPEEL $ 880498 $ 9LE'R0E S ZLZ'6LZ  $ ZOv'Te9's ¢ ISy'e0et $ ves'es8 $ 98.'6Z2T 182'697 ¢ £e805E'L $ €002
eel god wis  jusldopaag  |edmnd pue uogeonp3 EYCIETT SYHIOA Rojeg UONENSILILUPY UOBRISILIWDY  JBSA
-Huo uo AURLILIOD  ‘UoRRSRSY pue ujeap olignd 21g9nd epap JUSLWIUIBAOD) reosi4
JSaIo| ‘syled |BIBUDSy

Lajqel

(1) saeaj [eosiq uaAag I1SB

uolotng Aq sesuadxy apIA-IUSWIUIBACE)

eiuibiip ‘xopnewoddy Jo Ajunon



‘s1eak U9A9S 10} SjgelieAs ussq Ajuo sey uoneuuo| (1)

¥Z6'G80'81 - £O6'6FL'E £9/'622 PR} LSL'9PL'T 9€2'006'8 - g6.'7oL's 06z LSE 6002
SPO'LYLLL - PO6'EGL'E [Ber A4 1689°'9LS 289°'1¥2'2 686'6Z2'2 - 8G0'0EE Y Soy'BtY 8002
L02°220°L) - 665Z81'1 9G6.'GEL £G62° 165 985'v81L'Z £/2'866°L - 88 L1GY 08E'LGY 1002
8/8'120'GL - 8TY'¥eL') oseoes £G0'eYy BEL'OYET 9008699 - 6t.'8068'C £62'19¢€ 9002
LFE'R00'CL 009265 $£9'260'1 88.'%21 8/6'21¢2 160'vE0’Z 29¥'es0'9 - §LzZ'szl'e yZAN IR 4 S00¢
229'9L5'Z1 - 795'ZeL'1L ¢e6'elLl I81'Eel l80'c68'L 0¥y 0086's - 192'¢48'2 20202 +00C
ZL9'806'Z) - $ 16Z'160°L ¢ 9i18'lsz ¢ Z60'/ZL  $ 6E80'888'L $ 0Z8'ZIR'S § - $ cL¥'eB0't $ i8L'8TE <00e
=Y s)@ssy [euden sweibold  snoaue|@dsiy sbuiweg saxe] saxe| SUONNQUIUOD  SUOHNQLIUOD SaOIMBS FEETN
J0JsIsuRI UG ouyadg 0] JUBLUIISDAUY 12007 Ausdold pue pue 10} jeosid
ues papUsay JON paoLSBIUN BUYI0 |2IaU90) SJUBIS) sjuRID sabieyn
SUCIIRQUIUCD lexnden Bunerado
puUE SjUBID)
SIANNIATA TVHINID SANNIATH AVHO O

z elqel

(1) siea ) [E29SI] UBASS ISE]
SONUSADY SPIM-IUBWILLIBACSE)
el “xopewoddy jo ZJunog

P~
e



‘spun} syoafold [exden sspnoxd ()
"BSISA 991A PUE JIUN Wauodwos pajuasald Aj931a.0sI] 0} JUSLILISA0S Aellild Wolp uonnguuod sapniex3 (Z)
‘pIEOY [O0UDS NIUM WBUOALIOT) PRILESSI AJ81240SI(] S)I PUE JUSWILIBAGE) AJBWLH 8] 1O SpUN) 8D1AISS I3 PUR ‘Onussdy (enedg ‘lesauasy sepnpuj (1)

68

809°ZZL'6E ZZo'8Ls's  e0iozTL 009'08¢ 225'82Z°1L2 095'€/6°2 o98h'g9e’L gzL'I85'e £96°1.66 oL pRE’L 6002
201'60L'eE £L9ZPS'T  ei¥'iez 0.0°'08¢ 289°'ev2'02 020'2LL'e gLL'9st L LGB'EPS'E $92'0£6 Lie'eas’L 8002
161'996°LE L06°C20'c  9La'sEL LLL'PLE L28°195'6) 19e'Z8Z'2 leg'z8e’) 95t LTy'e G66°906 £31°292'L £002
SYEZ6Y'6Z Sro'ovt'e  LLLGLY 808'9Z¢ £ZL'¥6L'alL BYE'084°)L Z61'9eE'L ¥89°1L0L°C 619699 851 .01 900¢
0£2'285° 22 SBL'EV0'T 02801 508°69¢ 0¥S'205° LY £ZL'GLe'L L59'262' | ¥26°168°C 1ET'EE9 6LE'0ZL'L G002
GSETLZTYT 9Cr'2/9'l  SE9'FOT 08’96z 590°/98°GL 06.2°08¢"L 8L.'66. 290'69%'C 88G°EES 619'€86 ¥00Z
£61'92L'9T $.£'95e'Y  91£'80¢ §0.L'992 86E'g/E'G] 2es'96Z'L 08t'eeg ZTYG'EPSC z9.°72y Y50'vZe’ L £00C
€E1°'€26'62 9cl'ee’'s  64¥'L22 go0'Lee OV LG L LFO'veZ L Lyg'LLL e L90'C (FARTE 020911 200e
G6L'P0L YT 1G8'88c’L  08Z'EL¥ ¥25'08¢ 619°256'01 900'GLL L GLL'ZL8 8Z5'€00°C SEYLOY L9Z°LLLL L00Z
veY'ISL'eZ  § 628'ZhLLS ¥B0'0O¥L  $ 928202 $ GBS'6BE'SL  $ €S5°0Z°L $§ ve9'809°L $§ €82'8l't $ S06'Gle $ sirzee’L % 0002
0L aoiag  Juewidopas [eunynd pue  (Z) uoneonp3 EYENEYYY SHIOM, Aeeg UOHENSIULPDY  UOHEASIUIUPY B3

ploTy] Aunwwon  ‘uoneausay pue yesH 21gnd slgnd ewipnp JUBWIUISAOL) |eosiy

‘syued jedauany

sleaj |eosld ua] ISeT
(‘L) uondung Aq sainjipuadxy [BIUSWILIBAOL) [RISUSE)
e Baip ‘xopewoddy Jo Ayunon

€o|qel




'spuny syoafold [euden sapniox3 (&)
"BSISA 801A PUB JIUMN JUSUOCLIOYD paiuasald A191aJosig O} JUSLILIBACD) AlBLUILS WGH UOINGLIUOD sepnioxd ()
‘pieOg [00U2S JUN JuauodWo:) pajussald A[9)8Iosi(] S) PUBR JUSLLILLIBACS) ARG SU) JO SPUNY 80IA19G 1G9(] PUB ‘OnuaAsy |eroadg ‘fessuss) sapnjoul (1)

£66'/09°5¢ £¥1°002'ee 8rS0LL 08E'CEY 92E'v99 zov'eel 58.'61 2e6'651 FATA 1N A 0L2'68L'8 600¢
06lL'6GL'eE 166'9¢61°12 LEEOVL 206'vSE 91/'206 Zie'eer 689'42 oGe'ahL LES'PET gLe'oee's 800¢
glLe'elL'ee 221'8L1LYLE 66£'98 VT AT SOP'0E8 G169 L29'ie LLL'OYL 98G'v8L'Z ZLO'¥E0'8 1002
£99'¢Bt'6Z 695681 6L geLv'sel Zri'sle GE6'00L c/0'lee 14802 16268 BEL'0TE'E 202'89E'9 800g
PoL'vLLLe £G6'206' L) 200’10l 0v6'eS8e 9g£'29. £8E'€0Z 09Z'6Y L22'TL LBOYED'T 2950E1'9 G002
£221'012'62 GOG'GLL'9L TLLLSL z68'99) 6Z6'gLL 90121 ¥8.'92 6cL'L. LE0'€68'L 210'698'G $00Z
S0¥'9e8've Z80'0€8'GL 120'SLL 8CL'6EE £0£'c89 0.1'801 Liv'ee Trl'es 80858’ L 6/£'8rL's €002
682'G/1'CT GLE'80L'GL OLL'LSL 259'901 ££9'eas 20Z'c8L lep'el ¥2.l'es 92¢'6595 L ZTTr0L'G c00e
9Ll IEv'Ee L82'0Eg'vL 055'vee 9/6'618 ¥e'cis 906'0Z¢ 6¢c'L o0z '9¥ 68F'Es L GeT'0LLS LO0Z
LEG'EBY I § BELTL9EL $ 0LZ2'00c ¢ EL2°10L & 160'289 $ v9'cee §¢ 02901 $ 8EEve $ €l9%8P'L § coe'viey $ 0002
felol {z) lmuawiIanch $1S0D) SNODUR|IDOSIA SadlAkeg Adadoid S3N)I3L04 sasuadl] SoXe ] saxe | leap
-13}u| palancoay 104 pue Asuoiy pue Aoyemnbeay [elenl Apasdoay 120si4
sobieyn 10 350 sau4 ‘sead abalialg BUY0 |eizuadn)
ay; wol ‘spULISd
SNUBASY

SIEd ) |edsId Ua] 15e]
(‘L) @#0in0g AQ SaNuUSAdY [BIJUSWILLIBADS) |BIaUan
b ‘xopewoddy jo Ajunos
¥ aqel

69



“JESA XE] JUSLING JO J|BY 18111 PUB S1eak Xe] Juanbuiiep Jualind 1S0W 22y} sapnou; ()
-suondwapal pue| 8pnioul Jou sae(] "1salau pue seiyeuad Jo aasnoxg (L)

%02 L cig'eot'L %¥5° /6 B826'6£9°6 yP9'991 %S8°96 GRZ'EIY'S 252'c88'6 6002
%6601 LLP'9Z20')L %EL 66 SLPVIZ'6 ry'ele %0 L6 9z0'L90'6 gey'iee's 8002
%YYLl 0Z28'een’l %CS 001 10Z'5z6'8 ST A A %1086 616'102°8 g10'6.8'8 2002
%647 L1 06£°106 %925°66 205°908°L L¥SL0T %C6'C6 LO6'FOL L LGE'Ore’ L a00e
%9£'8 005°L6S %.5°86 18¥'716'9 LgL'eel %6996 0ZE LF8'9 LvL'SL0'L G00c
%028 9.Z'198 %96°.L6 615°20L°9 850°eS %6116 08F' S99 L0089 002
%8G L 6E6°'c0G %£8°86 g¥3'0/5'9 3zE6YL %6596 0Z5'1ey'e Gt'8Y9'0 £002
%8¥'9 z29'sey %G6°86 £EeC'8ls'9 Z0L'E0L %LE L6 LESYLY'D BEG'/8G'D 200e
%8LG Prevoe %S6°L6 098°271°9 25566 %EY 96 80£°220°'9 66L'/0€'9 1002
%EY'S 880°L8C § %C6°.L6 Gg'ell's  § 6S5°08 $ %0¥y'96 926'760'¢c  § 9ce'ee’'s $ 000¢
ANDTXEL (z'1) sexe]. AN XBL O} SUORIDNOY) {1) suoioaoD paloaylon (1) suonoa|on (1) A IEETN
O} s9Xe] jusnbuyeg SUOIOBI0D) xel Xe Arom Jo xeyl xe| (20814
wenbulaq Buipueising Xel 2101 B0} weanbuia ustad uaLND zalod §
10 90194 1O JUa%Iad

Sie9 )\ [BOSI] U3 ] ISET
SU0Q1I29]]09) pue salae] xe| Aaadoad
einbup ‘xonewoddy jo fjunon
G agel

70



‘uoIss|LWLIOD uoheIiodio)) 91B1S oY) AQ PaUSHJEISS S SaNjBA Passassy (Z)
aN[eA 133BLW JIB) JO 9%,00) I8 possasse ale Auadoud jguosiad pue sjeise [eay (L)

71

6E0'869'62F'L 98C'eLS 888'282'9L 969'025'6 LEL'B48'L BZL'80¥°0L 8lE'LLL'E 166°298°ESE'L 600¢
68Z'¢20'1ZLL 900'esZ 598°1L60'8Y ££9'60Z'8 y1L2'€65'0 1€1'925'89 Z8l'vil's Z89'095'226 2002
¥8.'sv9'cz8 gLe'ere LZ1'19z'sy zsg'scl’e 659°0.Z'9 S09'€ZV' Ve 0/2'206'6 299°90¢ 989 £002
6.2'2¥L'008 Zro'ese 685'296'LY 8L1'956°L Ti5'eze'9 TL5'291°19 89169004 819'LL6'099 9002
915'P£9'89. $£9'092 68C'LY8'EY G5G'SPe’L 298'v02'9 TLB'eLT'98 a8 Pro'oL FNAN 1] 5002
£06'86.'59L evL'90¢ 9ee's0L'es 86.°26€'L 62 L00'9 BSG'G5Y 95 8L6'€LS'0L $T1'€T0'2EY ¥00e
266°'88£'06. 166'cEE 920'vL8'9% 129'650°L L66°0EE'S L¥Z'06L'ES £e0°/61°01 1Z0'S6E'L1LY €002
¥6.°45€'289 51641 656'€59'6¥ Z91'€8s'9 ogcolE's 0Zl'0e9'zs 2265801 160°0¥C' 1SS 2002
958'05+'119 szy'eee G68'.88'LY 096'c£2'9 0zZ8'6.S't 28z7's9l LY 0469400} 86V ¥LEGEY Looz
298950185 ¢ 0£9°1Z¢ $ 005'869'6E 0€L'14T'9 $ 0£Z'0T6'Y $ 596's8E'PY $ 6622056 ZE0°LS0'aLy oooe
e10] Auadold 1Sy enden sj00], (1) Apadoig SaWoH (1) s|1s3 Jes )
[euosiad [eay S JUBYIIBIY pue [BUOSIOH SO sy [eosi
(2) Alian anand Kisuyoe

siea) [BaSId U3 3SET
Apadold sjgexe] Jo anjep passassy
eruibiip “xopewoddy jo Ajunon
9 9jqe]



Tahle 7
County of Appomattox, Virginia
Property Tax Rates (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Machinery

Fiscal Mobile Personal and Merchant's
Year Real Estate Homes Property Tools Capital
2000 0.55/0.80 % 055 § 350 § 3.50 % 1.00
2001 0.80 0.80 3.50 3.50 1.00
2002 0.66/0.80 0.80 3.50 3.50 1.00
2003 0.66 0.68 3.50 3.50 1.00
2004 0.66 0.66 3.50 3.50 1.00
2005 0.66/0.72 0.66 3.50 3.50 1.00
2006 0.72 0.72 3.50 3.50 1.00
2007 0.72/0.77 0.72 4.60 4.60 1.00
2008 0.77/0.44 0.77 4.60 4.60 1.00
2009 0.44/0.48 0.44 4.60 4.60 1.00

(1) Per $100 of assessed value.
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt fo
Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 8

Ratio of
Net Bonded Net

Gross Net Debt to Bonded
Fiscal Assessed Bonded Bonded Assessed Debt per
Year Papulation (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Debt Value Capita
2000 12,298 § 581,056,862 § 5,335,889 5,335,889 0.92% 434
2001 13,705 611,450,856 4,753,819 4,753,819 0.78% 347
2002 13,705 682,357,794 12,515,608 12,515,608 1.83% 913
2003 13,705 760,388,952 11,802,239 11,802,239 1.57% 861
2004 13,705 765,798,907 11,113,342 11,113,342 1.45% 811
2005 13,705 768,634,516 10,431,245 10,431,245 1.36% 761
20086 13,705 800,742,279 9,756,085 9,756,085 1.22% 712
2007 13,705 823,645,784 9,384,347 9,384,347 1.14% 685
2008 13,705 1,121,023,289 8,696,470 8,696,470 0.78% 635
2009 13,705 1,429, 698,039 7,985,636 7,985,636 0.56% 583

(1) Center of Government at the University of Virginia for 1990 census and Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service

for 2000 census.
(2) From Table 6
(3) Includes all long-term general obligation bonded debt, bonded anticipation notes, and kiterary fund loans.

Excludes revenue bonds, landfill closure/post-closure care liability, capital leases, and compensated absences.
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RORINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Appomattox
Appomattox, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Appomattox, Virginia, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2009. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; Specifications for Audits
of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of
Appomattox, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of controt deficiencies, that adversely
affects the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial
data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that a misstatement of the County of Appomattox, Virginia's financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the County of Appomattox, Virginia's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Appomattox, Virginia's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors, others within

the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Rb‘da,mj—a”m‘ lox Q/ch(;bsxt

Richmond, Virginia
December 23, 2009
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program
and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Appomattox
Appomattox, Virginia

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the County of Appomattox, Virginia with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The
County of Appomattox, Virginia's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County of
Appomattox, Virginia's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County of Appomattox, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009.

internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County of Appomattox, Virginia is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Appomattox, Virginia’s
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Appomattox,
Virginia’s internal control over compliance.
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Internal Control Over Compliance(Continued)

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihcod that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and woutd not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors, others within
the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

EO‘QM-/\—\_, -:*'O./M»F\, lo¥ O*’—"—MU—t—i%

Richmond, Virginia
December 23, 2009
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Federal
Federal Grantor/State Pass - Through Grantor/ Catalog
Program Title (Pass - Through Grantor's Number) Number Expenditures
Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass Through Payments:
Department of Social Services:

Promoting Safe and Stable Familles 93.556 § 16,659

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 146,875

Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State administered programs 93.566 254

Low Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 7,492

Child Care and Development Block Grants 93.575 63,477

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 55,384

Chafee Education and Training Vouchers Program 93.599 4,000

Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645 920

Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 111,814

ARRA - Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 5,959

Adoption Assistance 93.659 4,347

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 54,462

Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 16,498

ARRA - Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.713 846

Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 10,244

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 89,782
Total Department of Health and Human Services 3 589,013
Department of Agriculture:

Pass Through Payments:
Depariment of Agriculture:
Food Distribution - School 10555 § 65,728
Department of Education:
National school breakfast program 10.553 99,491
National school lunch program 10.555 357,741
Department of Social Services:

State Admin Matching Grants for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 136,822
Total Department of Agriculture $ 659,782
Depariment of the Interior:

Diract payments:
Bureau of Land Management:

Payments in lieu of taxes-public law 95-561 15.226 § 6,080
Total Department of the Interior $ 6,090
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Faderal
Federal Grantor/State Pass - Through Grantor/ Catalog
Program Title (Pass - Through Grantor's Number) Number Expenditures
Department of Transportation:
Pass Through Payments:
Department of Motor Vehicles:

Alcohol impaired driving countermeasures incentive grants 20601 § 14,248
Total Department of Transportation $ 14,248
Department of Hometand Security:

Pass Through Payments:
Department of Emergency Services:

State domestic preparedness equipment support program 97.004 $ 47,200

Department of Education:
Pass Through Payments:
Department of Education;

Title I. Grants fo local educational agencies 84010 § 443,625

Special Education grants to states 84.027 453,620

Career and Technical Education: Basic grants to states 84.048 41,086

Special education preschool grants 84.173 17,630

Safe and Drug free schools and communities 84.186 6,688

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 92,360

21st Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 221,044

Educaticn technology 84.352 2,540
Total Department of Education $ 1,278,603

Total Federal Assistance $ 2,594,936
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County of Appomattox, Virginia

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 1 - General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity
of all federally assisted programs of the County of Appomattox, Virginia. The County's
reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the County's basic financial statements. All
federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards
passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedule.

Note 2 - Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the County's
basic financial statements.

Note 3 - Relationship to Financial Statements
Federal expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the County's
basic financial statements as follows:

Intergovernmental federal revenues per the basic financial statements:
Primary government:

General Fund $
Total primary government $
Component Unit Public Schools:

School Operating Fund $
School Cafeteria Fund

Total component unit public schools $

Total federal expenditures per basic financial
statements $

Total federal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards $
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793,373

793,373

1,278,603
522,960

1,801,563

2,594,936

2,594,936




County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
‘'For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section i-Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: unqualified
internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weaknesses identified? yes X _no
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X _no
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weaknesses identified? yes X_no
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X _no
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a)} of Circular A-133? yes X _no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.553/10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster

84.010 Title |

93.658 Foster Care - Title IV-E/ARRA
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__vyes no

Section il-Financial Statement Findings

None

Section ll-Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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County of Appomattox, Virginia
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

There were no findings or questioned costs.
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